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16 May 2002

Dear Arthur

DISTRIBUTED GENERATION: PRICE CONTROLS, INCENTIVES AND CONNECTION CHARGES
We agree with Ofgem’s conclusion that many of the issues around distributed generation are too complex for immediate resolution. In particular, we agree that it would not be appropriate for the existing price controls to be reopened. However, given the scope of issues for consideration, we are also concerned that some of the ones targeted for inclusion in the next DPCR may not be capable of resolution in even that time scale.  The DNO's business plans would normally be submitted in summer 2003, which leaves little over a year to establish a suitable framework to cater for the expected growth in distributed generation so as to inform those business plans.

Putting this aside, the paper suggested that certain changes could be implemented quickly so as to facilitate generation connection, such as annualised connection charging, and we comment on these below. We have also set out in more detail some comments on the longer terms issues which are to be considered at the next price review. 

Short Term Actions

It is hypothetically possible for “deep” connection charges to generators (not customers) to be annualised and repaid over the term of a connection agreement. However, we think that this would raise a number of issues that would need to be addressed before such a policy could be implemented. For example, annualising the charge may lead to some financing costs for DNOs and to the extent that these would need to be reflected in the price control such a change might not be possible before the next review. In any event, some careful thought would need to be given to the period over which the annualised charge would be recovered.

It would also be necessary for DNOs to protect their financial position with suitable credit arrangements and termination provisions. In addition, Ofgem would have to provide some form of price control protection in the event that a distributed generator failed (e.g. the connection work could be included in the regulatory asset base). 

As far as reimbursing non-domestic initial contributors, we do not believe that it is necessary for Ofgem to consult on this aspect, or indeed for the DTI to consider legislation.  Indeed, if annualising the deeper connection charge was introduced, there would be a mechanism available for these annual charges to be reviewed in the event of second comers, so that costs could be appropriately reapportioned.  However, with both reimbursement and annualisation options there is a particular problem with competitive connections, since the DNO will not have received any payment in respect of such connections to be able to refund.

In determining the connection charges of generators, we continue to believe that the “25% rule” applies to load connections only, as we have made plain in our annual statements of charges which have been approved by Ofgem.

We will continue to work with the project group on the long term development statement so as to improve the provision of information to generators.

Longer Term Issues

We do not believe that it is appropriate to review the existing price controls with regard to the effect of distributed generation. At most, it may be necessary to revise the charging policy in the interim period to 2005 before new distribution price controls come into effect, although as noted above this would also require the resolution of a number of issues. In any event, we firmly believe that there is no need to reopen existing price controls.

We welcome the review of ER P2/5 and consideration of the issues of transmission use of system charging.  However, we are concerned that the scope of issues to be considered for the next distribution price review may not be capable of resolution in the time available.  Given that DNOs will be expected to submit business plans for the next DPCR in summer 2003, little over a year remains for a potential review of connection charging policy, including the boundary between connection and use of system, options for entry and exit charging, network access and DNO incentives to connect distributed generation.  The charging and incentive issues would need to be resolved early in the price review process so as to better inform the likely effect on growth of distributed generation and the effect on the capital expenditure forecasts to be included in the DNO’s business plans. As a consequence, we would urge Ofgem to review the scope of issues to be resolved for the next DPCR so as to reduce uncertainty both for DNOs and for potential generators.

The wider issue of planning consents remains a key concern. Without a co-ordinated approach from government on planing both for new generation and for the distribution and transmission infrastructure required to support it, the government policy targets for renewable energy will be challenged.

Yours sincerely

Rob McDonald

Group Regulation Manager

